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2100 Renaissance Blvd 
Suite 100 
King of Prussia, PA 19406-2713 
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 030-12570  47-05322-02  12/01/2021 – 12/02/2021 

LICENSEE: 
The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of 
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows: 
 
   1.  Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified. 
    2.  Previous violation(s) closed. 
 
   3.  The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-

identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy to exercise 
discretion, were satisfied. 

 
 

  Non-Cited Violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 
  
  
  X  4.  During this inspection certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being 

cited.  This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. 
  

 10 CFR 20.1902(a) requires that the licensee shall post each radiation area with a conspicuous sign bearing the 
radiation symbol and the words "CAUTION, RADIATION AREA."  
 
10 CFR 20.1003 Radiation area means an area, accessible to individuals, in which radiation levels could result in an 
individual receiving a dose equivalent in excess of 5 mrem in 1 hour at 30 centimeters from the radiation source.  
 
Contrary to the above, on numerous occasions between September 18, 2019, and November 8, 2021, the licensee failed 
to post a radiation area with a conspicuous sign bearing the radiation symbol and the words "CAUTION, RADIATION 
AREA."  Specifically, the licensee surveyed a decay cabinet containing licensed radioactive materials and recorded 
radiation levels in excess of 5 mrem in 1 hour at 30 centimeters from the radiation source(s), up to 50 mrem per hour on 
one occasion.  
 
This is a Severity Level IV violation. (NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.3.d.). Corrective Actions: The licensee 
committed to installing additional shielding such that the radiation level falls below 5 mrem/hour i.a.w. the definition of a 
radiation area in 10 CFR 20.1003, either through a new commercially-available cabinet or in-house constructed 
shielding.  During the interim period while awaiting this addition shielding, the licensee stated it would use smaller 
shielded containers when practical and, when not practical, ensure posting as a “Radiation Area.” 

 

Statement of Corrective Actions 
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified.  This statement of 

corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, 
date when full compliance will be achieved). I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested. 
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